
January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

Mayor Ganz opened the meeting at 7:35 p.m. Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski read the 
following statement of compliance:

In accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, annual notice of all meetings of the Borough of Fair Lawn was published in the
"News Beacon" issue of December 17, 1998. Notices were also posted on the Bulletin Board located on the First Floor of the
Municipal Building and at the Maurice Pine Free Public Library, copies mailed to the Record, the North Jersey Herald and News,
and the Shopper. The Annual Notices identified the meeting location and the time of the Council Meetings and Work Sessions.

PRESENT: Mayor Ganz, Deputy Mayor Ahearn and Councilmembers Dobrow, 
Tedeschi and Trawinski.

Also present: Manager Sacks, Attorney Lustgarten, Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski 
and Assistant Municipal Clerk Dugan.

RESOLUTIONS BY CONSENT #2-99

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi, Resolutions by Consent #2-99 was
unanimously adopted.

1. Resol. #35-99 Refund of Overpayment of Taxes
2. Resol. #36-99 Approval of Minutes:

Regular Meeting 11/24/98
Work Session 11/24/98
Closed Session 11/24/98

3. Resol. #37-99 Approval of Raffles & Bingo:

Temple Beth Shalom Bingo
G.W. Middle School H.S.A.on-premise 50/50

4. Resol. #38-99Change Order Storm Drain Improvements 1998
5. Resol. #39-99 Removed
6. Resol. #40-99Support for Route 4/208 Interchange Project

RESOLUTION # 36-99 Renew Food Concession Memorial Pool

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi, Resolution No.36-99 was unanimously
tabled.

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC COMMENTS

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Deputy Mayor Ahearn, the time for public comments was unanimously
opened.

Marty Etler, 15-12 Elmary Place, commented on the article he read in The Record regarding the Police giving tickets to trucks
employed by the Borough and he commended the actions that Manager Sacks took. He asked if the Council would like to
comment on this matter.

Mayor Ganz thanked Mr. Etler for his comments responding that the Chair has no comment with respect to this subject.

Councilmember Trawinski stated that the Manella Brothers trucks violate the four ton truck route. The issue is not garbage trucks
that pick up garbage but Manella Brothers trucks who use Ellington as a cut through in violation of the trucks over four tons on that
street. According to Mr. Brenneisen and his neighbors on Ellington Road that day was not a regular garbage pick-up day.
Councilmember Trawinski stated that the Police Director advised him that he issued no such order and he understands that after
speaking with Captain Marshall that no such order was issued by Director Martin or himself. The shift commanders have received
instructions to have stricter enforcement on Ellington Road and have taken it upon themselves to direct the Police Officers to take
the tougher enforcement policy. It is Councilmember Trawinski’s understanding that it is the sole and absolute discretion when
issuing a summons is that of the individual Police Officer on the scene when issuing a summons.

Councilmember Trawinski believes that not all the facts came out in the newspaper article. His intention is to call for a Council



January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

investigation of the entire situation. He further believes that misinformation was supplied to third parties by other representatives of
this Council.

Mr. Etler asked if he meant that someone on this Council gave out misinformation to someone.

Councilmember Trawinski replied that he did not mean that. He was saying that the newspaper picked up a series of
misinformation that is not accurate. Mr. Etler asked if he had more information to come out on this matter. Councilmember
Trawinski stated that he has information that was supplied to the Council on speaking with the former Police Director Martin,
Captain Marshall and Police Officer Messina who issued the summons and who indicated that no such directive was given to him
and Lt. Rose who stated that he had no such directive either.

Councilmember Trawinski stated that after speaking with Mr. Brenneisen there has never been an issue of public health for the
failure of garbage trucks picking up garbage on their street. In the last three years, Mr. Brenneisen has been here eight or nine
times complaining of trucks in excess of four tons causing problems on his street. He feels that generally the residents are pleased
with the stricter enforcement.

Councilmember Tedeschi remarked that he does not think a precedent should be set of the public speaking directly that they
should be speaking to the chair. He remarked that Mr. Etler was void of the facts. Mr. Etler responded that Councilmember
Tedeschi was avoiding the facts. Councilmember Tedeschi corrected him and said he was void of the facts.

Barry Winston, 19-11 Greenwood Terrace, mentioned that the Knights of Pythias has two upcoming events scheduled, Hand of
Friendship Day - June 13, 1999 and the Circus on September 26, 1999. Mayor Ganz asked him to send a letter to the Municipal
Clerk.

Miriam Levin, 42-39 Herold Drive, stated that the composting of leaves has been a problem for the last seven years. The quality of
life has been affected. The odor is offensive and depending on the weather seeps into her home. The children cannot play outside
because of this odor. She stated that the Borough has tried to remedy this situation for several years but to no avail. She has
spoken to Ron Lottermann, the Health Department, HazMat and the composting company. She and her neighbors have talked
about hiring an attorney and approaching the press. She feels that the problem cannot be remedied while the leaves are
composting at the Recycling Center. The taxpayers feel that the leaves should be carted outside of Fair Lawn.

Manager Sacks replied that the Borough has been looking into the problem since November. The Manager had the Health
Department, DPW and Recycling present so that they could go into greater detail. She indicated that the Borough cannot control
the odor coming off the stream and that the Borough Engineer Garrison told her that 
the level of water was too low so it did not dissipate. She said the weather has also contributed to the problem. Manager Sacks
announced that the Borough has ordered lime spray.

Ms. Levin replied that she has been in contact with the Recycling Coordinator and that he has told her the odor is definitely coming
from the leaves. She stated that to say the odor is not coming from the leaves is completely unacceptable to her and to the other
residents. She said that many, many things have been tried over the years to get rid of the odor and have failed. She remarked
that none of the things that have been addressed tonight are a solution but she is willing to listen.

Ms. Levin indicated that the problem goes back to Martha Clark being the Recycling Coordinator. Manager Sacks noted that the
Borough is composting less leaves now. Ms. Levin stated the smell is still the same regardless of the amount of leaves. Manager
Sacks stated that the leaves that were there during November and December were fresh dried leaves and that it would be too early
for them to give off an odor. Ms. Levin stated that was not the case and that she believes they begin the composting process as
soon as they are brought in. Manager Sacks stated that the compost people and the County Environmental people said the odor
was not coming from our facility.

Councilmember Tedeschi asked about the sewerage facilities that use the Saddle River. Manager Sacks responded that one was
Northwest Bergen and the other was the Ridgewood facility. Councilmember Tedeschi stated that this discharge is controlled very
closely by the DEP. Manager Sacks stated that the discharge is not without odor according to Engineer Garrison it is just non
toxic. Councilmember Tedeschi remarked that the BCUA dumps millions of gallons of water into the Hackensack River and the
water does not smell. He asked someone to verify Manager Sacks’ comment that the Borough is doing less leaves. DPW
Superintendent Davidson responded that there are truckloads of leaves that go to outside sources in the last year or so. He feels
that everyone there should have an opportunity to explain their situation before him so that he can answer any questions.

Ms. Levin stated that she received a letter from Ron Lottermann on December 15, 1998 which stated that the recent warm weather
has accelerated the naturally occurring odor that emanates from the decomposition of the leaves and that the odor is from the
leaves.

There has been discussion about constructing additional berms to help alleviate the spreading of these odors and feels that it is a
worthwhile project. Ms. Levin stated that she does not find that to her satisfaction that these odors can be contained.



January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

Robert Waxman, 42-29 DeBruin Drive, stated that his house shares 250 feet border with the municipal property and is also on the
Saddle River. He remarked that if the odor emanation were due to anything in the Saddle River it would be very apparent to him.
He stated that it is clearly the leaf composting which has been an issue for a number of years. His primary concern which was
brought up during the discussion of the expansion of the DPW complex was the obnoxious odors emanating from the facility. He
remarked that former Manager Kendall acknowledged it was from the leaf composting and had made a public commitment that leaf
composting would stop and would be carted out to an appropriate dumping facility although he could not pinpoint it exactly he
thought it was during a public meeting prior to the adoption of an ordinance in regard to the DPW expansion, approximately two
years ago. Mayor Ganz asked Mr. Waxman to call Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski with the date.

Mr. Waxman expressed concern about the smoke and noise attributed to the Police Firing Range and the Fire Department’s
Smoke House which they understand is done because of emergency considerations and a public safety issue but it seemed to him
that there is no similar excuse to be made for the composting. He cannot understand why this facility was placed in the middle of
a Class A community where he pays over $10,000 a year in property taxes while other communities have this type of facility in a
remote industrial area. He suggested that a simple solution would be to have an outside vendor come in and cart the leaves away.
He asked why they cannot live by former Manager Kendall’s commitment to discontinue this activity and cart the leaves.

Sean McGovern, 42-22 Naugle Drive, stated that they run a Nursery School in their home and that he has been a resident for over
a year. He feels that the smell is much stronger despite a great deal of talk about this problem nothing has been done. The smell
has a negative impact on his school. He is concerned if the odor has any health implications. The odor is definitely affecting the
way people see and view his neighborhood and he would like to see it eliminated.

Esther Leon, 42-35 Herold Drive, stated that she has resided there for twenty two years and as long as she has lived there they
have had major odor problems. She felt that the past few years the odor has become regular and extremely intense. She stated
that over the years she has complained and in October or November someone came out and told her it was the leaves. She
agrees with the other residents that it has gotten worse and it is time to do something entirely different and finally wrap it up.

Charles Coviello, 5-07 5th Street, member of the homeowners association, stated that he was confused about former Manager
Kendall’s remark about eliminating the leaves because over the last 12 years his association has been attending these meetings
and that has never come up. He remarked about an issue he read in the Manager’s Report about the windrows being turned by
the Borough and his understanding was that Millbrook was responsible for the turning of the leaves so that there would be no odor.
He asked the Manager, through the Chair, who is responsible for turning the windrows. Manager Sacks replied that Millbrook
comes in and does the labor. Mr. Coviello wondered why he saw that in the Manager’s Report the Borough was doing it. He
stated that he was surprised about the comment made earlier about the sewerage smells and he feels that is ridiculous because
there is no problem with that down there.

Councilmember Tedeschi stated that the only information he had about the odor conditions at the Recycling Center came from
Edith Gittelman. Mrs. Gittelman called him in December about the horrible odor and he went there at seven o’clock in the morning
and found no odor but was told to come at night when the smell is worse. He was told by Mrs. Gittelman that she has been
communicating with Ron Lottermann and he stated that he had not received any information with regard to this issue from the
Manager.

Anna Piro, 42-17 DeBruin Drive stated that she smelled this odor last May and in the summer. The smell goes through the whole
development. She stated that one day in particular the smell was so bad that she called Ron Lottermann to investigate this odor.
She said that she went with Ron Lottermann to the back of the Recycling Center to a huge mound of leaves where the smell was
undeniably coming from. She remarked that to say the smell is coming from another source may be possible but that only 10% is
coming from elsewhere. She feels it is pretty clear to see that it is the leaves and that one would have to have blinders on to say it
is coming from some other place.

Jules Royak, 22 Herold Drive, Glen Rock, stated that he is approximately one block from the Recycling Center. He struggles with
the comment that it is coming from the Saddle River. He has been running on that route along the river and there is no other place
along the river that smells like that except at the Recycling site. He asked that the Borough come up with a solution to this
problem.

Miriam Levin commented that Mrs. Gittelman circulated a petition and served it on the town council with over 200 signatures on it
in regard to the composting smell. She remarked that she has written several letters to the Editor of The Shopper and has been in
constant contact with Millbrook, Martha Clark and Ron Lottermann. She stated that Mrs. Gittelman has kept notes on her calls to
the EPA, the Bergen County Health Department, the local Health Department, HazMat and the EPA.

Joan Busacco, 42-24 De Bruin Drive, stated that she had called the Health Department several times and does not understand
how it can be said, by the Council, that this is the first time hearing about this new problem. Mayor Ganz remarked that what
Councilmember Tedeschi was saying was that this was the first time the Council had been made aware of these recent issues. Ms.



January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

Busacco stated that she has been calling for three years. Mayor Ganz said that they were talking about the problem that the flyer
had brought to their attention. Ms. Busacco stated that the smell is so bad that she cannot stay in her house nor can she sleep in it
and it is unfair because of the taxes she pays.

Manager Sacks asked Bill Davidson, Superintendent of the Department of Public Works to speak. He stated that he has been
working for the Borough of Fair Lawn since 1961 and that the leaves have always been brought to that location. In the early 80's,
former Manager Garger brought in an outside firm to manage the facility. The area has a history of odor problems. Millbrook took
over in 1983 and since then the yard has been rearranged and the leaves remain at the site for a period of one year. The
Recycling crew picks up the leaves and takes them out of town. Mr. Bleeker, from Millbrook, recycles them out of state. Millbrook’s
agreement requires them to manage the facility with a minimum amount of odor. They have tried flipping the leaves following a
wind sock. He stated that he is not a good judge of odors. He has asked Mr. Bleeker to check the facility. It had been suggested to
put lime on the leaves. He remarked that this past fall has been dry and that the leaves have been picked up on schedule. He then
stated that the residents are the experts because they live there. He said Ron Lottermann has had contact with the residents.
Superintendent Davidson said he spoke to Mr. Bleeker about remedies and alternatives for that area.

Borough Engineer Ken Garrison explained that about three years ago the DEP changed the requirements at the site and he is not
sure where the odors are coming from. He brought maps and advised the residents to come up after the meeting to look at them.

Manager Sacks asked Engineer Garrison to address the river and what goes into that river. He stated that upstream in the river are
two sewerage treatment plants, Ridgewood’s facility and the Bergen County facilities plant. Certainly some of these odors possibly
could be coming from the discharge from these treatment plants. Councilmember Tedeschi asked him if that what his opinion and
he stated that he really didn’t know, he has not been involved with it.

Anna Piro asked if he has seen a discharge and Engineer Garrison stated that he has not seen a discharge. Ms. Piro asked if he
has seen the leaves in the Recycling Center yard and he responded that of course he has. Engineer Garrison stated that there
could be other unknown sources.

Robert Waxman, stated he understands that no scientific testing has been done. He feels it is the obligation of the Borough to do
that. He claims that he has pictures of smoke or vapors rising from the leaves.

Manager Sacks asked Ron Lottermann to speak and he stated that he has obviously spoken to many of the residents that were
present. Despite the odor complaints, the DEP says the site is in compliance. The Health Department referred complaints to him
and he has spoken to Joan Busacco and Edith Gittelman who asked him to stop there at night because the odor is greater at night.
That night he went to De Bruin Drive and the odor was a slight tea like smell. He stated it is his belief that some of the odors are
coming from the composting site but cannot say if it is just from the leaves.

Mayor Ganz thought it was appropriate for the Borough residents who see it, smell it and have lived with this problem, to have this
issue resolved. He asked Manager Sacks to investigate and report back to the Council within thirty days. He presumed it would be
a colder January than what it had been in December and that it will be less of a problem. Manager Sacks stated that the lime has
been ordered and they will go ahead with that. She also stated that if the odor is coming from the facility, the Borough will take
care of that part. The problem is that if the odors are coming from elsewhere, they cannot control that and she doesn’t want to
mislead anyone tonight by saying what they are going to do will solve the problem 100% because what they heard tonight that
there are other possibilities of the source of the odor. They certainly will work with the residents in controlling those sources. She
said that what they are going to try to control immediately is the odor that may be due to the leaf compost pile. Mayor Ganz asked
Manager Sacks again to get the report back to the Council within the thirty day period.

Deputy Mayor Ahearn stated that he has been fishing in that river for the past twenty five years and while the quality of the water
has deteriorated and does smell it is not the smell that these people are talking about. Last May he was fishing at Dunkerhook and
he thought that Fair Lawn had a garbage transfer station because it smelled like rotting garbage. He feels the residents are right
that there is an odor coming from that site. If a pile of leaves has value then someone must want it and perhaps the Manager and
her staff might be able to find someone that would like it someplace else. He stated that the Council has to do something since is
an unreasonable interference with people’s use of their property and it has to be dealt with.

Councilmember Tedeschi stated that in the seven years he has sat on this Council this problem has been an on again and off
again problem. With all due respect to the experts he has never heard a single explanation other than leaves like he has heard
tonight. He just doesn’t understand why the Council does not recognize the fact that it is the leaves then try to solve the problem.
He told the residents that they live there, they know what it smells like, they know where it is from, it is up to the Council and they
have to take the leadership to solve the problem. He hopes that the Manager Sacks can come back with some good
recommendations and suggestions, but it is the Council that solves the problems. He stated that this is embarrassing.

Councilmember Trawinski stated that he shares Councilmember Tedeschi’s sentiment. What disturbs him is that the three years he
has sat on the Council he has spoken to Mrs. Gittelman and Mrs. Waxman but this issue has never been raised to the Council by



January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

the Borough Manager. Certainly if it had been brought to their attention, not one of them would not have wanted to address this
problem. He said he was troubled by Engineer Garrisons explanation of Northwest Bergen’s odor being that they are twenty miles
upstream. He wanted to make sure that Manager Sacks contacts Ridgewood and Northwest Bergen to see what, if anything, is
going on. He has walked the area and states that he shares the Deputy Mayor’s sentiments that they need to address it and if it
means moving it out of Fair Lawn, then maybe the time has come.

Councilmember Tedeschi stated that he thought he might have the answer. Three years ago when there were not as many
complaints they had eliminated the tub grinder and were putting the windrows out as whole leaves, the breakdown period took nine
months and it was a slower breakdown. Mr. Bleeker has now brought back the tub grinder which speeds up the breakdown
coupled with the dry autumn, coupled with the warm fall and so people are smelling accelerated leaves.

Mayor Ganz invited the residents back any time for this matter or any other. Mayor Ganz then asked for comments on any other
topic than leaves.

Leon Wender, 7-22 Manor Avenue, spoke about pollution and ecological awareness in regard to the operators of Borough owned
vehicles who should shut the engine while they are out of the truck. He stated that he read in The Shopper that Memorial Pool was
a top priority and commented on what he thought would be more cost efficient. He asked why the work that has been started at the
Senior Center is done as a fill in between jobs. He also asked when the work will begin on the Library. He saluted the Garden
Club for the work they have done. He remarked that now is the time to rebuild Fair Lawn on its 75th Anniversary.

Frank Brenneisen, 23-34 Ellington Road, stated that there was a "Children At Play" sign placed in front of his house that has to be
moved to the end of the block. He said that the crosswalks need to be painted. He remarked about the Police ticketing big trucks
and stated that these trucks come down the street every 25 minutes. He felt the Police were doing a good job with the
enforcement and that the Director was doing a good job.

Manager Sacks responded that the sign will be moved. She stated that she sent him two letters in regard to the striping and
furthermore it has to be 55 degrees to apply these stripes.

Mr. Brenneisen stated that it has been 60 degrees on some days in December and it should have gotten painted. Mayor Ganz
stated that there were technical reasons why it has to be done and in view of the fact that there were 60 degree days does not
mean that it will get painted that day.

Sean McGovern, stated that he had a problem with the trash hauler who threw out his trash cans. He said he made an official
complaint and was told to go out and buy new cans. He stated that he has contacted the Health Department and the Recycling
Center and they have not followed up on this and he is out $50.00. Manager Sacks said she will follow up on this matter.

Deputy Mayor Ahearn stated that the Borough should have some type of citizen compliant database so that they can see what has
already been done so that they can follow through. Councilmember Trawinski stated that there was a computerized network to
handle complaints presented at the last League of Municipalities conference.

Charles Coviello, 5-07 5th Street, asked the Borough Manager why they had to go out to a contractor to do the striping work.
Manager Sacks stated that the Borough does not have the equipment. Mr. Coviello stated that he was confused about the striping
because it is done on a yearly basis and if it needs to be done just do it. He also stated that nothing has been done on the parking
situation on River Road. He remarked about the article in the paper that Mr. Etler referred to and said that was not what was said.
He asked Councilmember Tedeschi that if he knew about the tub grinder why didn’t he bring it to the Council’s attention.
Councilmember Tedeschi responded that it came to him after looking at all the facts. Mr. Coviello asked how much the Borough
would be charged to move the leaves. Councilmember Tedeschi estimated that it would cost $80,000. Mr. Coviello stated that he
has been coming to the meetings longer than Councilmember Tedeschi has been on the Council and that Bleeker was at the site
back in 1987 and whatever is the problem there, he created it.

Borough Attorney Lustgarten stated that Mr. Bleeker inherited the problems at the site. He said he did not remember former
Manager Kendall saying the leaves would not be there anymore. In regard to the Police Firing Range the Council is always
receptive and that they look to the future not the past. He said it is a complex issue.

Mr. Coviello asked Mayor Ganz if all of the appointments have been filled. Mayor Ganz stated that they had not been filled but
they were going into a Work Session to discuss further appointments.

Mr. Coviello asked about the change order. Mayor Ganz told him to speak to the Borough Manager about it. Mr. Coviello said he
had an idea to advertise competitive bidding on the Internet. Mayor Ganz stated that he thought that was a good idea.

Mr. Waxman stated that he appreciated the responsiveness of the Council and congratulated the Mayor on how he handled the
meeting.



January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting

file:///C|/Users/mike.lebeau/Documents/fairlawn/1999/meeting%20-%20011299.htm[1/3/2013 4:20:20 PM]

There being no additional comments from the public, upon motion by Deputy Mayor Ahearn and a second by Councilmember
Trawinski, the time for public hearing was unanimously closed.

Councilmember Trawinski talked about the contract change order. He also stated that the Council looked into ozination at Memorial
Pool. He said he has spoken to Chairman John Keith in regard to several issues including energy costs and EPA regulations that
would ban the use of certain technology.

Councilmember Tedeschi stated that the process would cost $35,000 and that the Borough could save hundreds of thousands of
dollars.

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi, the meeting was unanimously adjourned to
work session at 9:25 p.m.

Mayor Ganz reconvened the meeting at 11:00 p.m.

Manager’s Appointments

Manager Sacks announced that Andy Karas will be the Prosecutor.

Council Appointments

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi Resolution No. 41-99 appointing members of
the Ethics Board as unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Deputy Mayor Ahearn Resolution No. 42-99 appointing the Alternate
Homeowner Member of the Rent Leveling Board was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Tedeschi and a second by Deputy Mayor Ahearn, Resolution No. 43-99 appointing the members
of the Environmental Commission was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Tedeschi, Resolution No. 44-99 appointing the members of the
Environmental Commission was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Tedeschi, Resolution No. 45-99 appointing the members of the
Holiday Celebrations Committee was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Tedeschi and a second by Deputy Mayor Ahearn, Resolution No. 46-99 appointing members of
the Planning Board was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Councilmember Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi, Resolution No. 47-99 establishing and filling
the position of Vice-Chairman of the Pedestrian Bicycle Safety Task Force was unanimously adopted.

Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Ahearn and a second by Councilmember Tedeschi, the meeting was unanimously adjourned at
11:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Marilyn B. Dugan, RMC

Assistant Municipal Clerk


	Local Disk
	January 12, 1999 - Regular Meeting


